
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA 

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
THURSDAY, JUNE 8, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 

SOUTH PASADENA PUBLIC LIBRARY 
1100 OXLEY STREET, SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030 

South Pasadena Library Board of Trustees Statement of Civility 
As your appointed governing board, we will treat each other, members of the public, and city 

employees with patience, civility and courtesy as a model of the same behavior we wish to reflect 
in South Pasadena for the conduct of all city business and community participation. The decisions 

made today will be for the benefit of the South Pasadena community and not for personal gain. 

NOTICE ON PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & ACCESSIBILITY 
The South Pasadena Library Board of Trustees Meeting will be conducted in-person from the Ray 
Bradbury Conference Room on the Library’s 2nd Floor, located at 1100 Oxley Street, South 
Pasadena.  

The Meeting will be available: 

 In Person – Ray Bradbury Conference Room, 1100 Oxley Street

 Via Zoom – Webinar ID: 892 5352 3747/ Passcode: 073797

To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of 
the public can observe and make public comment via Zoom using one of the three methods below. 

1. Go to the Zoom website, https://zoom.us/join and enter the Zoom Meeting information.
2. Click on the following unique Zoom meeting link:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89253523747?pwd=L01UOTFDeW5na1l0ZExJeEszaytVZz09.
3. You may listen to the meeting by calling: +1-669-900-6833 and entering the Zoom Meeting

ID.

CALL TO ORDER President Dean Serwin 

ROLL CALL President Dean Serwin 

Vice President Bianca Richards 

Secretary Annie Chang Long 

Trustee Kenneth Gross 

Trustee Edward Pearson 

COUNCIL LIAISON: Councilmember Janet Braun 

https://zoom.us/join
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89253523747?pwd=L01UOTFDeW5na1l0ZExJeEszaytVZz09


Regular Meeting Agenda June 8, 2023 

City of South Pasadena 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES 
The City welcomes public input. Members of the public may speak for up to 3 minutes for a general public 

comment or per agenda item by means of one of the following options: 

Option 1: 

Participate in-person at the Library Conference Room. 

Option 2: 

Participate via Zoom. 

Public comment speakers are able to speak by going to the Zoom controls and clicking on the “Raise Hand” icon. 

The Meeting Host will be notified that a hand has been raised and speakers will have their microphone un-muted 

by the Host during the appropriate Public Comment period. 

Option 3: 

Email public comment(s) to lbt@southpasadenaca.gov.  

Public Comments received in writing will not be read aloud at the meeting, but will be part of the meeting record. 

Written public comments will be uploaded online for public viewing under Additional Documents. There is no word 

limit on emailed Public Comment(s). Please make sure to indicate:  

1) Name (optional).

2) Agenda item you are submitting public comment on.

3) Submit by no later than 12:00 p.m., June 8, 2023

NOTE:  Pursuant to State law, the Commission may not discuss or take action on issues not on the meeting agenda, except 

that members of the Commission or staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by persons exercising 

public testimony rights (Government Code Section 54954.2). Staff may be asked to follow up on such items. 

1. Public Comment

PRESENTATION 

ACTION/DISCUSSION 

2. Minutes of the Regular Library Board of Trustees Meeting of March 9, 2023

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board review and approve the March 9, 2023 Meeting
Minutes, which will supersede the minutes that were erroneously amended and approved
at the April 13, 2023 Trustee meeting.

3. Minutes of the Special Library Board of Trustees Meeting of April 13, 2023

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board review and approve the April 13, 2023 Special Meeting
Minutes.

4. Minutes of the Regular Library Board of Trustees Meeting of April 13, 2023

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board review and approve the April 13, 2023 Regular Meeting
Minutes.

mailto:%20lbt@southpasadenaca.gov


Regular Meeting Agenda June 8, 2023 

City of South Pasadena 

5. California State Library Building Forward Infrastructure Grant

6. Library Administrative Policy Manual Update

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board rescind the Library Administrative policy titled
“Procedures for Patrons Exhibiting Disruptive Behavior”.

7. Trustees 2023 Work Plan and 2022 Accomplishments

8. Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Library Budget

9. Library Operations Update

COMMUNICATIONS 

10. Board President Communications

11. Board Member Communications

12. Council Liaison Communications

13. Friends of the Library Representative

14. Trustee Liaison to the Friends

15. Library Director

ADJOURNMENT 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO AGENDA DOCUMENTS 
Prior to meetings, agenda related documents are available for public inspection at, South 
Pasadena Public Library, 1100 Oxley Street, South Pasadena, CA 

The complete agenda packet may be viewed on the City’s website, www.southpasadenca.gov. 

Meeting recordings will be available for public viewing after the meeting. Recordings will be 
uploaded to the City’s YouTube Channel no later than the next business day after the meeting. 

The City’s YouTube Channel may be accessed at: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCnR169ohzi1AIewD_6sfwDA/featured 

ACCOMMODATIONS 

 The City of South Pasadena wishes to make all of its public meetings accessible to the public. If 
special assistance is needed to participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk's Division at 
(626) 403-7230 or CityClerk@southpasadenaca.gov. Upon request, this agenda will be made available
in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities. Notification at least 48 hours prior to the
meeting will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility
to the meeting (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II).

http://www.southpasadenca.gov/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCnR169ohzi1AIewD_6sfwDA/featured
mailto:CityClerk@southpasadenaca.gov


Regular Meeting Agenda June 8, 2023 

City of South Pasadena 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
I declare under penalty of perjury that I posted this notice of agenda for the meeting to be held on June 
8, 2023, on the bulletin board in the courtyard of City Hall at 1414 Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 
91030, and on the City’s, website as required by law, on the date listed below. 

  6/5/2023  /S/ 

Date Sean Faye, Library Administrative Secretary 



South Pasadena Public Library 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
MINUTES 

March 9, 2023 

CONVENE:  
President Dean Serwin called the regular meeting of the Library Board of Trustees of the South 
Pasadena Public Library to order in the Library Conference Room on March 9, 2023 at 6:59 p.m. 
Members of the public attended in-person and virtually, via Zoom, as part of the City’s 
resumption of in-person meetings.  

IN ATTENDANCE: Trustees Present Also Present 
Kenneth Gross  Cathy Billings, Library Director 
Edward Pearson    Dominica Megerdichian, Deputy City  
Bianca Richards      Manager  
Dean Serwin  Janet Braun, Council Liaison 

 Maida Wong, Public Services Manager  
 Sean Faye, Administrative Secretary 

EXCUSED: Secretary Annie Chang Long 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

1. None

PRESENTATION: 

2. Deputy City Manager Domenica Megerdichian provided updates from the City Manager’s
Office.

The City’s Strategic Plan for 2021-2026 will be revised this summer. 

The City’s 2022 Year in Review is available on the website. 

Library staff have participated in the Chamber of Commerce ShopTalk and at the Quarterly 
Networking Business events to share the Library’s resources for career and professional 
development.  

The Guide to Doing Business offers a host of resources and guidance from the City’s Economic 
Development team for operating or starting a business in South Pasadena. 

The quarterly City newsletter provides updates about major projects and development from the 
Public Works and Community Development departments. 

ITEM 2
Library Board of Trustees

June 8, 2023



Board of Trustees Minutes  
March 9, 2023 

Page 2 

The Social Services Resource Guide will assist the community in navigating the many agencies 
that provide assistance.  

The City’s Finance Policies and Procedures were adopted in December 2022. Next week there 
will be a joint special meeting with the Finance Commission on the mid-year budget report and 
adjustments. Board members were encouraged to participate in opportunities for community 
input related to the budget.  

The State’s COVID-19 Emergency Declaration has ended. AB 361, which allowed members of 
bodies subject to the Brown Act to participate in public meetings remotely, is no longer in effect. 
Elected and appointed council and board members are now required to appear in-person for 
their respective meetings. Members of the public will still be able to participate via Zoom. 
COVID-19 protections for residential tenants are also set to expire. The temporary programs 
related to local businesses using outdoor spaces will transition to the City’s existing sidewalk 
dining program. 

City-wide department organizational assessments are being conducted and will be presented to 
City Council. 

An RFP for City Attorney services has been issued. 

There is a new Housing Division within the Community Development department which will be 
involved with the Caltrans surplus properties and other matters related to housing. An inter-
departmental Homelessness Working Group has been established under the Housing Division. 
The homeless population in South Pasadena is served very heavily by the Police Department 
and Library.  

The City-wide electrification project is underway. This includes the Police Department’s 
transition to an all-electric fleet and the installation of electric vehicle chargers at City Hall. 

Some important upcoming dates for City Council: 

 3/15/23 – Finance Commission to discuss the mid-year budget report

 4/19/23 – Study session on street improvements and infrastructure

 4/29/23 – The state of housing and Caltrans policies

 5/3/23 – Joint Council/Library study session on the strategic plan and library facility

 6/28/23 – Commissioner Congress, the joint meeting of all City commissions and boards
to meet with City Council, provide updates, and to approve work plans

The Social Services Resource Guide will be formatted for the City’s mobile app. The City’s 
website will soon be revamped. 

[Deputy City Manager Domenica Megerdichian left the Library Board of Trustees meeting at 
7:20 p.m.] 

ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

3. Minutes of the Regular Library Board of Trustees Meeting of February 9, 2023



Board of Trustees Minutes  
March 9, 2023 

Page 3 

Motion by Library Board Vice President Bianca Richards, seconded by Library Board 
Trustee Edward Pearson, to approve the minutes as written for the regular meeting of the 
Library Board of Trustees held February 9, 2023. 

AYES: Gross, Pearson, Richards, Serwin 
NOES: None 
ABSENT:  Long 
ABSTAIN: None 

4. Election of Officers and Appointment of Representative to the Friends of the Library

Motion by Library Board Trustee Edward Pearson, seconded by Library Board Trustee 
Kenneth Gross, to approve the Library Slate of Officers for 2023 as follows – President – 
Dean Serwin; Vice President – Bianca Richards; Secretary – Annie Chang Long. Bianca 
Richards will continue to serve as the Trustee Representative to the Friends of the 
Library. 

AYES: Gross, Pearson, Richards, Serwin 
NOES: None 
ABSENT:  Long 
ABSTAIN: None 

5. Volunteer Recognition Event

Options for the Keynote speaker were discussed. The importance of volunteerism should be 
emphasized in the topic that is ultimately chosen. 

Tables, chairs, and tablecloths will be set up by Library staff the day before the event. Board 
members will help pick-up refreshments. Coffee, tea, and juice will be provided. Specific duties 
will be assigned as needed via email. 

Library staff will contact Brad Colerick for a musician recommendation. 

6. California State Library Building Forward Infrastructure Grant

The contract has been completed with architectural and engineering consultant Marx Okubo 
Associates. An assessment of the Library facility was conducted on 3/8/23. This will provide the 
necessary background information for the grant application. The due date for the application 
may be pushed back. This topic will be discussed at the 5/3/23 joint City Council/Library Board 
study session.  

7. Policy Review

[Public Services Manager Maida Wong arrived at the Library Board of Trustees meeting at 7:36 
p.m.]

The Board discussed the “Gifts to the Library” policy. It was suggested that a reference to the 
South Pasadena Municipal Code (SPMC) be included for any non-collection-related donations, 



Board of Trustees Minutes  
March 9, 2023 

Page 4 

including, but not limited to monetary, real property, or other works of art. A separate policy that 
addresses monetary gifts to the Library will be brought to the Board for review. A policy for art 
donation and display is being developed by the City and Public Arts Commission. The Library’s 
policy will be developed to be consistent with the City policy.  

There was a discussion about the term “intellectual freedom.” Staff provided an explanation as 
to why that language was used and noted that is in keeping with the American Library 
Association’s foundational positions on the freedom to read and freedom of information. 

The definitions and function of the collecting levels that are included in the Collection Guidelines 
documents were explained by staff. These levels signify the depth of different areas of the 
collection. As a small public library our collections are generally maintained at a “general 
interest” level.     

Motion by Library Board Trustee Edward Pearson, seconded by Library Board President 
Dean Serwin, to adopt the amended “Material Selection Policy,” renamed as “Collections 
Selection and Maintenance Policy,” and rescind the following policies, which are either 
obsolete or have been incorporated into the “Collections Selection and Maintenance 
Policy”: the Collection Maintenance Policy, the Graphic Novel Selection Policy, and the 
Video Materials Policy. 

AYES: Gross, Pearson, Richards, Serwin 
NOES: None 
ABSENT:  Long 
ABSTAIN: None 

[Public Services Manager Maida Wong left the Library Board of Trustees meeting at 7:56 p.m.] 

8. Trustees 2023 Work Plan and 2022 Accomplishments

The Commissioner Congress will take place on 6/28/23 at the War Memorial Building. Boards 
and Commissions will highlight three accomplishments tied to the work plan goals presented at 
the last Congress.  

Work Plans for the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year will also be presented at the Congress. The 
goals/tasks to include in next year’s Work Plan were discussed.  Goals should be consistent with 
the new 2023-2027 Strategic Plan. Goals related to improvements to the existing building, 
possibly planning for a new building and the use of the Carlyle bequest for a “story room” were 
proposed. Staff will present draft goals for Trustees to review at the 4/13/2023 meeting.  

9. Library Health and Safety Update

The cypress trees in front of the Library have been removed. 

There were 15 entries in the Library Code of Conduct log for February. Incidents documented 
were related to hygiene, theft, men using the women’s restroom, abusing the computer guest 
pass system, and a variety of low-level disruptive behaviors. Three people are currently banned 
for a year, in accordance with the SPMC.  



Board of Trustees Minutes  
March 9, 2023 

Page 5 

There were no outreach requests submitted to the Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority 
(LAHSA) in February. 

The San Gabriel Valley Supplemental Care Team responded to a homeless outreach request 
made by Library staff, but the individual did not want to engage with them. In January, outreach 
services were provided to four individuals in South Pasadena. 

The Housing Division in Community Development is taking a leadership role in the 
Homelessness Working Group. The goal of developing a proposal for a “Continuum of Care 
Program” was discussed at their 2/22/23 meeting.  

Letters from the City Manager and Police Chief in support of a request for $4 million in federal 
funding for a regional alternative local crisis response program were submitted to Senator Diane 
Feinstein and Congressman Alex Padilla. If funding is received, the Mobile Crisis Response 
program may be expanded throughout the San Gabriel Valley region.  

The Police Department will provide Active Shooter training for Library staff on 3/24/23 and 
4/7/23. 

10. Library Operations Update

Local History Librarian Oliva Radbill received a $950 grant from the Internet Archives to attend a 
Zine conference in San Francisco in August. 

Digital Services Librarian Alexis Mendoza gave a presentation at the Chamber of Commerce 
this week. 

The second round of interviews for the Support Services Librarian are scheduled for 3/17/23. 

Recruitment is underway for additional Substitute Librarians. 

Applications for the part time Administrative Office Clerk are being reviewed. 

Teen volunteer applications for the Summer Reading Program are being accepted. 

67 people attended the 2/25/23 Pollyanna screening, despite the poor weather. 

The Los Angeles Clarinet Choir will perform a Cherry Blossom Festival-themed concert of 
contemporary Japanese music on 3/11/23. 

On 3/25/23 the Library will partner with the Music Center to present a Korean Classical Music 
and Dance Company event. 

South Pasadena Poet Laureate Ron Koertge will lead a poetry writing workshop for adults on 
4/18/23. 

The Eclectic Music Festival will be on 4/29/23. The Library will not have a stage, but will have a 
crafting activity for families. 



Board of Trustees Minutes  
March 9, 2023 

Page 6 

On 5/5/23 there will be an event presented in partnership with the South Pasadena Preservation 
Foundation called “Wynyate: If Walls Could Talk”. Wynyate is a house that was built in 1888 by 
South Pasadena’s first mayor, Donald Graham, which is listed on the National Register of 
Historic Places. 

Details for the 5/3/23 Joint Study Session with City Council are being finalized. 

The Strategic Plan brochure is under review.  

The Library published a bookmark that provides tips for adults to talk to children about issues of 
equity, diversity, and inclusion as they relate to literature.  

The mid-year budget review will occur soon. The Library Board will have a chance to review the 
proposed Fiscal Year 2023-2024 budget before Library staff discuss it with the City Manager. 
This will be a Discussion Item at the 4/13/23 Trustees meeting. 

COMMUNICATIONS: 

11. Board President Communications

President Serwin commended Library staff and the Board for reviewing and updating Library 
policies that haven’t been reviewed in many years. The updated policies will reflect the current 
intentions of the Strategic Plan.   

12. Board Member Communications

Vice President Bianca Richards agreed with President Serwin’s comments. She thanked Library 
Director Cathy Billings for forwarding the New York Times article, “A Love Letter to Libraries, 
Long Overdue.” Vice President Richards expressed interest for the Board to tour surrounding 
libraries. 

Trustee Kenneth Gross thought Deputy City Manager Mergerdichian’s presentation was 
wonderful. 

Trustee Edward Pearson had nothing to add. 

13. Council Liaison Communications

Councilmember Janet Braun thanked the Board for a great discussion and feels the Library’s 
future could be very exciting. 

14. Friends of the Library Representative

Friends Board President Ellen Torres was not present. 

15. Trustee Liaison to the Friends

Vice President Richards had nothing to add. 



Board of Trustees Minutes  
March 9, 2023 

Page 7 

16. Library Director

Director Billings reminded the Board of the Serving With a Purpose conference on 5/23/23 in 
Ontario, CA. Trustee Pearson and members of the Friends Board will be attending. 

NEXT MEETING: The next regular meeting of the Library Board of Trustees will be on 
Thursday, April 13, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. in the Ray Bradbury Conference Room and by video 
conference for the public via Zoom. 

ADJOURNMENT: President Dean Serwin adjourned the regular meeting of the Library Board of 
Trustees on March 9, 2023 at 8:33 p.m.   

Minutes approved as written. 
Minutes approved  as corrected. 

_____________________________________ ___________________________________ 
President      Date 



South Pasadena Public Library 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE  

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
MINUTES 

April 13, 2023 

CONVENE:  
President Dean Serwin called the special meeting of the Library Board of Trustees of the South 
Pasadena Public Library to order in the Library Conference Room on April 13, 2023 at 7:02 p.m. 
Members of the public attended in-person and virtually, via Zoom, as part of the City’s 
resumption of in-person meetings.  

IN ATTENDANCE: Trustees Present  Also Present 
Kenneth Gross  Cathy Billings, Library Director 
Annie Chang Long Janet Braun, Council Liaison 
Edward Pearson    Sean Faye, Administrative Secretary 
Bianca Richards 
Dean Serwin  

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

1. None

ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

2. Authorize closure of the Library for four hours, Wednesday, April 26, 2023 to enable
staff to participate in a “strategic plan implementation workshop”

Motion by Library Board Vice President Bianca Richards, seconded by Library Board 
President Dean Serwin, to authorize the closure of the Library for four hours on 
Wednesday, April 26, 2023, to enable staff to participate in a “strategic plan 
implementation workshop.” 

AYES: Gross, Long, Pearson, Richards, Serwin 
NOES: None 
ABSENT:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 

ADJOURNMENT: President Dean Serwin adjourned the special meeting of the Library Board of 
Trustees on April 13, 2023 at 7:04 p.m.   

Minutes approved as written. 
Minutes approved  as corrected. 

ITEM 3
Library Board of Trustees

June 8, 2023



Special Board of Trustees Minutes  
April 13, 2023 

Page 2 

_____________________________________ ___________________________________ 
President      Date 



South Pasadena Public Library 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
MINUTES 

April 13, 2023 

CONVENE:  
President Dean Serwin called the regular meeting of the Library Board of Trustees of the South 
Pasadena Public Library to order in the Library Conference Room on April 13, 2023 at 7:04 p.m. 
Members of the public attended in-person and virtually, via Zoom, as part of the City’s 
resumption of in-person meetings.  

IN ATTENDANCE: Trustees Present  Also Present 
Kenneth Gross  Cathy Billings, Library Director 
Annie Chang Long Janet Braun, Council Liaison 
Edward Pearson      Sean Faye, Administrative Secretary        
Bianca Richards 
Dean Serwin  

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

1. None

ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

2. Minutes of the Regular Library Board of Trustees Meeting of March 9, 2023

Trustee Kenneth Gross stated that he believed his vote on the approval of the 2/9/23 Board 
minutes was an abstention and should have been recorded as such, rather than as “Aye”. 

Motion by Library Board President Dean Serwin, seconded by Library Board Trustee 
Edward Pearson, to approve the minutes as amended for the regular meeting of the 
Library Board of Trustees held March 9, 2023. 

AYES: Gross, Pearson, Richards, Serwin 
NOES: None 
ABSENT:  None 
ABSTAIN: Long 

3. Volunteer Recognition Event

The Volunteer Recognition brochure has been sent to Cantu Graphics and copies will be ready 
early next week. Pastries have been ordered from Heirloom Bakery & Café. Vice President 
Bianca Richards and Sally Kilby will pick up the pastries the day of the event. Trustees were 

ITEM 4
Library Board of Trustees

June 8, 2023



Board of Trustees Minutes  
April 13, 2023 

Page 2 

asked to arrive early to assist with the set-up of the Community Room. President Dean Serwin 
will say a few words and distribute the Volunteer of the Year certificates. Remarks will be 
prepared for Mayor Jon Primuth. Josie Huang from LAist will be the keynote speaker. Gregory 
Poreé will perform music. 

4. California State Library Building Forward Infrastructure Grant

Engineering consultant Marx Okubo Associates is finalizing their draft facility assessment report 
for the Library. Library Director Cathy Billings has met with Public Works leadership to discuss 
the next steps. The grant application will be submitted before the 5/18/23 due date.  

5. Quarterly Budget Review

The Library is on track with its operational expenditures. Large invoices for the new first floor 
workstations, patio furniture, and Library Strategic Plan consulting firm Berry-Dunn are in 
process and not currently reflected in the general ledger expenditure summary.  

Income fee projections are higher than what was originally budgeted for the following: the 
replacement of lost items; rental of the Community Room; and rental of Community Room 
equipment. The Community Room was budgeted for $2K, but is expected to take in $19K. 
Library replacements were budgeted for $5K. $4,900 has been received so far, with an 
expectation of receiving $7,500 by the end of the Fiscal Year.  

The Contract Services account covers some of the Library’s largest expenses. This includes 
OCLC, the Library’s metadata cataloguing service; SirsiDynix, the integrated library system; 
Unique Management Services, the Library’s debt collection service; and maintenance of the 
Library’s security gates and fire alarm systems. 

Nearly all periodicals are paid from one invoice, except for The New York Times, The Los 
Angeles Times, and local papers. 

The Library pays CENIC full price in advance for Wi-Fi service. A rebate is issued the following 
fiscal year. 

All funds for the Library’s book budget are expected to be spent. 

Funds for the City-Wide Reading Program will be applied to scheduled book group events and 
the multiple copies needed for each title and associated activities.  

At the City Manager’s request, each department has established key performance indicators as 
part of the budget process. The Library’s key performance indicators include: 

 Adding 500 people to the Library’s e-newsletter recipient list.
o 656 have been added through the third quarter.

 Conducting 15 SPUSD and private school class visits.
o There were eight visits at the start of the school year. The low number may be

attributed to COVID concerns.

 Adding at least 4,500 items to the collection.
o 5,900 items have been added through the third quarter.



Board of Trustees Minutes  
April 13, 2023 

Page 3 

 To schedule 20 rentals of the Community Room.
o There was one rental during the first quarter, five rentals in the second quarter,

and nine rentals in the third quarter.

 To exceed 12,000 visitors per month on average.
o There were 15,000 in one quarter, 13,000 in the second quarter, and 14,000 in the

third quarter. Visits are still below pre-COVID numbers. Director Billings will
investigate how these figures compare to other libraries.

 To lend at least 25,000 items per month on average.
o The Library has averaged around 27,000 items per month. These numbers are

comparable to pre-COVID, however it should be noted that the numbers are
boosted by automatic renewals, therefore comparison of circulation numbers
before and after auto-renewal was implemented in January 2021 is complicated.

 To exceed 4,000 attendees for Library programs.
o At this time, 8,000 people have attended Library programs.

President Serwin requested to see the Library’s ledger of vendors, encumbrances, and dates of 
payment for open purchase orders as part of the next Quarterly Budget Review. 

6. Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Draft Proposed Library Budget

The Board reviewed the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024. Each department will meet 
with the Finance Director and City Manager to review their budget projections and proposals. 

The account for Conference and Meeting Expenses has been increased compared to prior years 
to enable staff to attend the 2024 American Library Association conference in San Diego.  

Amounts for salaries and benefits are prepared by the Finance Department and are not 
available yet. 

$34K has been requested in the Machinery and Equipment account for new furniture in the Teen 
Area. $15K has been requested for new exterior book drops, which we learned from the Marx 
Okubo assessment are not currently ADA accessible. 

Funds from the Building Improvements account will be designated for the installation of the new 
patio furniture and to replace the Teen Area carpet.  

The account for Digital Resources covers many of the Library’s online resources, while the State 
Library and the Friends pay for others. Each online resource is available from outside of the 
Library. The Library is part of a consortium to purchase and share eBooks.  

Selectors track the numbers of holds on both physical and digital books, and purchase extra 
copies to help meet the demand for items that have “high holds”.  

The Board was encouraged to take part in the Budget Survey and to attend the public meetings 
if they are available.  

7. Trustees 2023 Work Plan and 2022 Accomplishments



Board of Trustees Minutes  
April 13, 2023 

Page 4 

There was a discussion about the three goals to include in the Trustee’s Work Plan for Fiscal 
Year 2023-2024. It was agreed to keep the first stated goal to “continue comprehensive review 
and update of library administrative policies.”  

It was recommended that the second suggested goal, “Engage in a library needs assessment 
and master site planning process (if City Council provides this direction), that takes into account 
the anticipated residential growth driven by the Regional Housing Needs Allocation 
requirements” be divided into two separate objectives.  

The master site plan would entail hiring a consultant to manage gathering community input, the 
needs assessment for the Library building, and conduct community outreach.  

It was suggested that the third goal address critical infrastructure improvements to the current 
Library building, and enlist the support of the 21st Century Committee for the Library to 
investigate the feasibility of the master site plan of a new Library building. There were additional 
questions about how best to utilize the Carlyle Bequest (i.e., modifying the existing building or 
toward the children’s story room in a new building).   

It would be ideal to have an estimate for the total cost for the demolition of the current site, the 
transitional location until a new site is built, and the new site itself. 

Goal #2 could address critical infrastructure improvements, as well as the master site plan. Goal 
#3 could be for the Board to become ambassadors to the community to raise awareness and 
participation about the need for infrastructure improvements to the current site and gauge the 
interest for a new building.  

It was also suggested Goal #2 include collaboration with Public Works and Library staff to 
develop priorities and a plan for completing any funded critical structure projects.  

This will be a Discussion Item for the 5/11/23 Trustees meeting. 

8. Library Operations Update

The new full time Support Services Librarian, Jennifer Reyes, will start on 4/17/23. Jennifer has 
worked as a full time paraprofessional for many years while she earned her library degree.  

On 5/6/23, as part of National Preservation Month and the City’s 135th birthday, the Library will 
partner with the South Pasadena Preservation Foundation to present “Wynyate: If the Walls 
Could Talk.” The Wynyate House was built by South Pasadena’s first mayor Donald Graham in 
1887. The Wynyate House is on the National Register of Historical Places and played a role in 
the fight against the construction of the 710 freeway. There will be a presentation with historic 
photos by former Wynyate resident Dr. Tedie Hudson, whose mother was responsible for the 
house’s restoration. 

Interviews are being conducted with Teen volunteer applicants for the Summer Reading 
Program. 

New workstation furniture has been installed for Library staff on the first floor. 



Board of Trustees Minutes  
April 13, 2023 

Page 5 

COMMUNICATIONS: 

9. Board President Communications

President Serwin is excited for next week’s Volunteer Recognition event. He is also excited for 
the opportunity to work with staff and City Council at the 5/3/23 Special Joint Study Session to 
start implementing the new Five-Year plan, and see if there’s a proposal for a new library 
building. 

10. Board Member Communications

Vice President Bianca Richards echoed President Serwin’s comments. “LitFest in Pasadena” 
has changed its name to “LitFest in the Dena” and will take place on May 6 & 7 at the Mt. View 
Mausoleum. There will be 40 panel discussions, workshops, and readings with over 150 diverse 
authors, publishers, publicists, and poets. 

Secretary Annie Chang Long congratulated everyone on the completion of the Library Strategic 
Plan and is excited to see it come to life and be used as a living document. 

Trustee Edward Pearson thanked everyone for their contributions to the Trustee Work Plan 
discussion and felt it clarified a lot for him. Trustee Pearson remarked on the movement to 
defund libraries across the country. 

Trustee Kenneth Gross had nothing to add. 

11. Council Liaison Communications

Councilmember Janet Braun found tonight’s discussion very exciting and thanked everyone for 
their participation. She is hopeful things are moving in a positive direction. 

12. Friends of the Library Representative

Friends Board President Ellen Torres was not present. 

13. Trustee Liaison to the Friends

Vice President Richards had nothing to add. 

14. Library Director

Library staff underwent the second part of its Active Shooter training with the Police Department, 
reviewing exits and strategies in case of emergency. 

NEXT MEETING: The next regular meeting of the Library Board of Trustees will be on 
Thursday, May 11, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. in the Ray Bradbury Conference Room and by video 
conference for the public via Zoom. 



Board of Trustees Minutes  
April 13, 2023 

Page 6 

ADJOURNMENT: President Dean Serwin adjourned the regular meeting of the Library Board of 
Trustees on April 13, 2023 at 8:30 p.m.   

Minutes approved as written. 
Minutes approved  as corrected. 

_____________________________________ ___________________________________ 
President      Date 



Trustees 2023 Work Plan and 2022 Accomplishments 

Recommendation: 
Finalize accomplishments and work plan items to be presented at the Commissioner Congress 
on Wednesday, June 28, 2023. 

2023 Work Plan 

1. Continue comprehensive review and update of Library Administrative Policies.

2. Coordinate with staff to plan, schedule, and complete visits to new and remodeled
library facilities.

3. Actively engage in the master site planning process and serve as ambassadors to the
community to raise awareness about the need for a new or remodeled library building and to
encourage participation and discussion.

2022 Accomplishments 

1. Library Special Tax renewed, to remain in effect until it is repealed by the electorate. In
advance of the November 8, 2022 election, Trustees performed outreach about the
important role the Library plays in the community and educated voters about Library
programs and services.

2. 5-Year Strategic Plan (2023-2027) adopted. Trustees were deeply engaged in the
process, participating in the selection of the consultant, reviewing community input, and
helping to finalize the plan’s goals and tasks.

3. Library Administrative Policies updated. Trustees reviewed seven policies. An amended
“Collections Selection and Maintenance Policy” was adopted, one policy was tabled for
further consideration, and five obsolete policies were evaluated and rescinded.

ITEM 7 
Library Board of Trustees 

June 8, 2023 



ITEM 8 

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA Library Board of Trustees 

June 8, 2023 

General Fund Operating Expenditures by Department 

Actual 

DepartmenUProgram Exp 2019/20 

City Council 45,401 

City Manager 1,512,868 

Management Services 

Management Services 

City Clerk 113,311 

Elections 185,743 

Human Resources 324,830 

Transportation Planning 12,835 

Legal Services 492,566 

Information Systems 573,881 

Finance 

Finance 755,116 

City Treasurer 9,211 

Non-DepUOverhead 1,060,512 

Police 9,171,740 

Fire 

Fire 5,435,419 

Emergency Preparedness 91,913 

Public Works 

Admin & Engineering 586,534 

Environmental Services 54 

Park Maintenance 497,591 

Facilities Maintenance 799,206 

Community Development 1,876,257 

Library 1,525,685 

Community Services 

Senior Services 330,809 

Community Services 172,667 

Recreation and Youth Services 656,232 

Capital Projects 

Total GF Expenditures 26,230,381 

Actual Actual Budgeted Estimated Pro osed 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 2023/24 

35,890 45,446 49,194 71,388 81,903 

1,577,656 1,815,368 1,201,339 1,116,593 1,274,785 

6,615 480,230 415,995 496,105 

115,512 470,283 389,517 447,319 

76,843 93,242 166,000 110,809 63,900 

350,761 898,923 905,818 915,553 

287 90 

607,285 572,032 895,140 895,140 420,000 

541,110 833,200 889,657 1,151,511 

871,011 1,040,325 1,203,880 1,144,568 1,050,473 

8,444 9,993 8,752 8,752 9,239 

996,366 2,264,416 2,694,140 2,669,105 2,539,444 

10,400,998 11,384,907 11,032,589 11,020,087 11,512,034 

6,315,749 7,716,685 6,670,340 7,198,725 7,300,602 

31,932 46,904 55,000 51,000 55,000 

618,493 572,717 924,621 526,444 1,243,249 

653 55,009 304,980 140,241 207,480 

476,793 581,680 1,086,294 504,755 975,901 

826,985 901,702 1,171,959 907,533 1,344,778 

1,819,769 2,428,641 3,622,199 3,047,629 4,152,225 

1,608,369 1,839,131 1,932,290 1,866,927 2,211,234 

202,374 237,957 431,985 390,480 532,959 

217,223 276,302 356,440 421,305 373,413 

323,135 835,939 783,405 818,737 1,090,949 

170,000 

28,023,640 32,725,100 37,273,183 35,681,208 39,450,055 

PROPOSED BUDGET I FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 •

Item 8 - Page 1 



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA LIBRARY 

Library 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget Snapshot 

Overview 

The Library Department is a community anchor and a resource and learning hub. It is a
welcoming place for people of all ages, walks of life and socioeconomic backgrounds. People
visit the Library to study, work, relax, and recharge. It is a place where people learn about their
community, connect with their neighbors, and expand their horizons. The Library provides 
resources in a variety of formats to meet the information and learning needs of a diverse 
population. It supports reading readiness, literacy, lifelong learning, recreation, and professional
development with its collections, programs, and services. The Library is open 7 days a week, for
a total of 58 hours. In the first three-quarters of Fiscal Year 2022-23 the Library issued more 
than 2,000 new library cards, and an average of 14,285 patrons came through the doors every
month. Borrowing is close to pre-pandemic levels, averaging 28,600 checkouts a month.
Librarians at our reference desks helped around 80 patrons each day and presented programs
attended by more than 7,700 people. 

Fiscal Year 2022-2023 was a banner year at the Library. We saw library operations return to
normal as the impacts of COVID-19 receded, and the Library Special Tax, which provides 
approximately 20% of the Library's budget, was renewed by 86.65% of the voters, and will
continue until terminated by a majority vote of the electorate. A robust strategic planning
process engaged the community and staff and resulted in a plan that will guide library programs
and services for the next five years, as well as inform decisions about the allocation of human 
and fiscal resources. The plan outlines many exciting goals related to operations, the facility, 
technology, and services.

The Library's goals for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 are tied to the strategic plan and include
implementing a Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) system that will improve customer self
service options and collection management, implementing a module for the Integrated Library
System (ILS) that will streamline the acquisition of library materials, and securing funding from
the California State Library for critical infrastructure and life-safety improvements to the facility.

Notable Changes - Wages and Benefits 
The Library is not requesting any new positions or changes to positions for Fiscal Year 2023-24.

Notable Changes - Operations and Maintenance 
The budget includes funding to enable librarians to attend The American Library Association's
annual conference, which will be held in San Diego.

Capital Outlay 
Funds have been designated to paint, re-carpet and replace the furniture in the teen area, as
well as to replace the curbside book drops on Oxley Street. 

PROPOSED BUDGET I FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 •

Item 8 - Page 2 





















CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

PROPOSED BUDGET | FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 53 

Capital Improvement Projects 

FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24
Project No. Project Name Budget Projected Carryovers Additions Budget
General Building & Facilities

9206 825 Mission Yard Security Gate 160,000    -       160,000      -    160,000    
9224 Citywide Facility Repair 150,000    33,729  116,271      250,000  366,271    
9226 FD Front Bay Door Replacement 80,000      -       80,000  -    80,000      
9229 PD Locker/Restroom Improvement 180,000    -       180,000      10,000    190,000    
9230 PD Improvements 16,000      -       16,000  1,000      17,000      
9231 PD Briefing Room Update 18,000      -       18,000  1,000      19,000      
9232 PD1st Floor Inter Paint/Drywal 12,000      -       12,000  1,000      13,000      
9242 War Memorial Audio/Vis. Equipm 50,000      -       50,000  (50,000)   -      
9269 War Memorial HVAC Repairs 25,000      -       25,000  -    25,000      
9273 Rec. Facilities Key System 75,000      -       75,000  (75,000)   -      
9404 Citywide Facilities Assessment/ Security Enhancement 200,000    73,124  126,876      100,000  226,876    
New FD Diesel Exhaust System Replacement -      -       -   50,000    50,000      
New Senior Center Flooring -      -       -   60,000    60,000      

Subtotal General Building & Facilities 966,000    106,853     859,147      348,000  1,207,147    
Housing Authority

New 308 San Pascual Residence Improvements -      -       -   30,000    30,000      
Subtotal Housing Authority -      -       -   30,000    30,000      

Information Technology
9149 VoiP Phone System Installation 200,000    20,000  180,000      -    180,000    
9186 CD Permit Management Software 310,000    50,000  260,000      -    260,000    
9187 CD  Record Scan & Doc Managmnt 45,000      -       45,000  (45,000)   -      
9407 CMMS/Work Order System/GIS 120,000    5,000   115,000      -    115,000    
New Agenda Management System -      -       -   50,000    50,000      
New City Website System & Design -      -       -   60,000    60,000      

Subtotal Information Technology 675,000    75,000  600,000      65,000    665,000    
Library

9301 Library HVAC Repairs 25,000      5,000   20,000  234,100  254,100    
9322 Library ADA Ramp, Light. & Imp 20,000      -       20,000  -    20,000      
9405 Library Security Camera System 20,000      -       20,000  -    20,000      
New Library Facility Improvements -      -   100,514  100,514    
New Library Roof -      -   291,781  291,781    
New Library Master Plan -      -   -    -      

Subtotal Library 65,000      5,000   60,000  626,395  686,395    
Community Services & Parks

9033 Grevalia&Berkshire Pocket Park 876,255    51,255  825,000      -    825,000    
9157 Golf Course Netting Replacemen 750,000    19,407  730,593      -    730,593    
9263 Pocket Park Construction -      -       -   -    -      
New Parks Master Plan -      -       -   150,000  150,000    
New Snake Trail Improvements -      -       -   50,000    50,000      

Subtotal Community Services & Parks 1,626,255      70,662  1,555,593   200,000  1,755,593    
Sewer

9408 Sewer Sys. Rep., Rehab&Replace 500,000    25,000  475,000      -    475,000    
Subtotal Sewer 500,000    25,000  475,000      -    475,000    

Stormwater
9364 Rio Hondo LRS Alham, Wash Trtm 5,000   -       5,000    -    5,000   
New Huntington Drive Green Street -      -       -   250,000  250,000    
New City Hall Stormwater Project 500,000    -       500,000      -    500,000    
New Arroyo Seco San Rafael & San Pascual Projects -      -       -   437,500  437,500    

Subtotal Stormwater 505,000    -       505,000      687,500  1,192,500    
Streets

9203 Street Repairs - 2023 3,958,538      72,435  3,886,103   -    3,886,103    
9264 ADA Sidewalk Repairs 321,723    25,000  296,723      111,059  407,782    

Subtotal Streets 4,280,261      97,435  4,182,826   111,059  4,293,885    
Sustainability

9188 City/Civic EV Charging System 350,000    100,000     250,000      102,700  352,700    
9189 Arroyo Park EV Charging System 50,000      50,000  -   -    -      
9402 EV Charging Station (MSRC) 13,650      13,650  -   -    -      
9410 Climate Action Plan 120,000    -       120,000      -    120,000    

Subtotal Sustainability 533,650    163,650     370,000      102,700  472,700    

Item 8 - Page 12 

Graphics
Highlight



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

PROPOSED BUDGET | FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 54 

FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24
Project No. Project Name Budget Projected Carryovers Additions Budget
Transportation & Traffic

9102 Fremont/Huntington MAT Project 475,000  -   475,000   -     475,000    
9161 North-South Corridor ITS Dploy 788,483  200,000  588,483   640,365   1,228,848    
9192 Fair Oaks Traffic Signal Const 482,568  469,526  13,042    -     13,042      
9278 Fair Oaks ITS Project -   -   -    -     -      
9290 Grevelia/Fair Oaks Int. Imprv 50,000    -   50,000    -     50,000      
9350 Pedestrian Crossing Devices 200,000  -   200,000   -     200,000    
9351 Rect. Rapid Flashing Beacons 260,915  27,450    233,465   31,497     264,962    
New Fremont/Huntington MIP Project -   -   -    475,000   475,000    

Subtotal Transportation & Traffic 2,256,966    696,976  1,559,990     1,146,862    2,706,852    
Water

9300 Ann. Water Main Repairs 2,000,000    -   2,000,000     -     2,000,000    
9348 Water Facil. Site Improvements 88,000    -   88,000    -     88,000      
9349 Advanced Metering Infr. (AMI) 150,000  -   150,000   -     150,000    
9409 Westside Reservoir 550,000  25,000    525,000   -     525,000    
9411 Elevated Tanks-Raymond/Bilikie 120,000  -   120,000   -     120,000    

Subtotal Water 2,908,000    25,000    2,883,000     -     2,883,000    

Totals 14,316,132$    1,265,576$ 13,050,556$      3,317,516$   16,368,072$ 

Item 8 - Page 13 



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 S

O
U

T
H

 P
A

S
A

D
E

N
A

 
C

A
P

IT
A

L
 IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 | F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 202

3-2
4

 
55 

Item 8 - Page 14 



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 S

O
U

T
H

 P
A

S
A

D
E

N
A

 
C

A
P

IT
A

L
 IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 | F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 202

3-2
4

 
56 

Item 8 - Page 1 

Item 8 - Page 15 

Graphics
Highlight

Graphics
Highlight

Graphics
Highlight

Graphics
Highlight



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 S

O
U

T
H

 P
A

S
A

D
E

N
A

 
C

A
P

IT
A

L
 IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 | F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 202

3-2
4

 
57 

475,000$       ‐$        Total 5‐Year 3,997,500$      

5179 9408 Sewer System Repair, Rehabilitation, & Replcm 500,000       25,000    475,000    ‐    810,000   878,000   820,000   1,014,500    3,997,500    

500,000   25,000    475,000    ‐    810,000   878,000   820,000   1,014,500    3,997,500    

505,000$       687,500$        Total 5‐Year 49,663,586$       

5181 9364 Rio Hondo Load Redctn (LRS) Alhambra Wsh Tr 5,000    ‐     5,000     ‐    50,000    ‐   ‐   ‐   55,000   

5182 TBD Huntington Drive Green Street ‐    ‐     ‐    250,000    595,000   5,570,500    5,570,500    ‐   11,986,000  

TBD New City Hall Stormwater Project 500,000   ‐     500,000    ‐    ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   500,000   

5180 New Arroyo Seco San Rafael & San Pascual Projects ‐    ‐     ‐    437,500    ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   437,500   

5183 Future Lower Arroyo Seco Projects ‐    ‐     ‐    ‐    2,305,000    8,723,362    8,723,362    14,433,362   34,185,086  

5184 Future Camino Verde Pocket Park ‐    ‐     ‐    ‐    100,000   600,000   900,000   900,000   2,500,000    

505,000   ‐     505,000    687,500    3,050,000    14,893,862   15,193,862   15,333,362   49,663,586  

4,182,826$       111,059$        Total 5‐Year 12,773,885$       

5185 9203 Street Repavement & Repairs 3,958,538    72,435    3,886,103     ‐    2,000,000    2,000,000    2,000,000    2,000,000    11,886,103  

5186 9264 Sidewalk Replacement & Repairs 321,723   25,000    296,723    111,059    120,000   120,000   120,000   120,000   887,782   

4,280,261    97,435    4,182,826     111,059    2,120,000    2,120,000    2,120,000    2,120,000    12,773,885  

370,000$       102,700$        Total 5‐Year 1,022,700$      

5103 9188 Civic Center/City Hall EV Charging Systems 350,000   100,000    250,000    102,700    ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   352,700   

5188 9189 Arroyo Park EV Charging Systems 50,000    50,000    ‐    ‐    ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   

5200 9410 Climate Action Plan 120,000   ‐     120,000    ‐    100,000   100,000   100,000   100,000   520,000   

TBD 9402 EV Charging Stating (Fire Spt Lot) 13,650    13,650    ‐    ‐    ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   

5187 TBD Civic Center/Mound Solar Panel Installation ‐    ‐     ‐    ‐    ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   

5189 TBD Urban Forest Master Plan ‐    ‐     ‐    ‐    150,000   ‐   ‐   ‐   150,000   

533,650   163,650    370,000    102,700    250,000   100,000   100,000   100,000   1,022,700    

1,559,990$       1,146,862$       Total 5‐Year 30,710,351$       

2008 9102 Fremont/Huntington (MAT) Mobility Active Tr 475,000   ‐     475,000    ‐    1,214,580    3,149,702    1,216,878    ‐   6,056,160    

2002 9161 North‐South Corridor (Fair Oaks) ITS Deployme 788,483     200,000    588,483    640,365    4,662,358    4,662,358    ‐   ‐   10,553,563  

TBD 9192 Fair Oaks Traffic Signal Const 482,568   469,526    13,042     ‐    ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   13,042   

TBD 9278 Fair Oaks ITS Project ‐    ‐     ‐    ‐    ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   

5129 9290 Grevelia Street and Fair Oaks Avenue 50,000    ‐     50,000     ‐    150,000   ‐   ‐   ‐   200,000   

5130 9350 Pedestrian Crossing Devices 200,000   ‐     200,000    ‐    122,624   ‐   ‐   ‐   322,624   

1512 9351 Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (Mission & 260,915       27,450    233,465    31,497     ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   264,962   

TBD New Fremont/Huntington (MIP) Mobility Improvem ‐        ‐     ‐    475,000    1,025,000    4,500,000    4,000,000    ‐   10,000,000  

5131 TBD Garfield Avenue and Monterey Road Traffic Si ‐    ‐     ‐    ‐    100,000   300,000   ‐   ‐   400,000   

5132 TBD Columbia Street Striping and Signals ‐    ‐     ‐    ‐    300,000   ‐   ‐   ‐   300,000   

5133 TBD Orange Grove Avenue Project ‐    ‐     ‐    ‐    150,000   350,000   ‐   ‐   500,000   

5135 TBD Citywide Mobility / Active Transport Plan Upd ‐    ‐     ‐    ‐    150,000   ‐   ‐   ‐   150,000   

2007 9311 Fair Oaks SR‐110 Interchange On/Off‐Ramps ‐    ‐     ‐    ‐    300,000   500,000   ‐   ‐   800,000   

5134 TBD Mission‐Merdian‐El Centro Bollard System ‐    ‐     ‐    ‐    ‐   50,000    200,000   ‐   250,000   

5136 TBD Traffic Signal Controller & Cabinet Replaceme ‐    ‐     ‐    ‐    ‐   300,000   300,000   300,000   900,000   

2,256,966    696,976    1,559,990     1,146,862     8,174,562    13,812,060   5,716,878    300,000   30,710,351  

 Sewer

 Stormwater

 Streets

FY 23‐24 Total:      $475,000

FY 23‐24 Total:      $1,192,500

FY 23‐24 Total:      $4,293,885

 Sustainability

 Transportation & Traffic
FY 23‐24 Total:      $2,706,852

FY 23‐24 Total:      $472,700

Item 8 - Page 1 

Item 8 - Page 16 



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 S

O
U

T
H

 P
A

S
A

D
E

N
A

 
C

A
P

IT
A

L
 IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 | F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 202

3-2
4

 
58 

2,883,000$           ‐$           Total 5‐Year 25,713,000$        

5190 9300 Water Main Pipeline Repairs 2,000,000      ‐      2,000,000      ‐      1,000,000       1,000,000    1,000,000    1,000,000    6,000,000   

5192 9348 Water Facility Site Improvements 88,000      ‐      88,000      ‐      50,000      250,000   250,000    250,000    888,000   

5193 9349 Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) 150,000   ‐      150,000   ‐      300,000   1,000,000    1,000,000    ‐    2,450,000   

5110 9409 Westside Reservoir Design/Construction 550,000   25,000     525,000   ‐      2,000,000       7,000,000    6,000,000    ‐    15,525,000   

5191 9408 Raymond & Bilikie Elevated Tanks Study & Imp 120,000        ‐      120,000   ‐      ‐   80,000      200,000    ‐    400,000   

5194 Future SCADA Upgrade ‐   ‐      ‐     ‐      150,000   150,000   150,000    ‐    450,000   

2,908,000      25,000     2,883,000      ‐      3,500,000       9,480,000    8,600,000    1,250,000    25,713,000   

 Water
FY 23‐24 Total:      $2,883,000

Item 8 - Page 17 



South Pasadena Public Library
GATE COUNT COMPARISON
6/5/2023

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
FY18 21,862    21,340    19,737    20,939    17,309    16,365    17,690    17,581    20,463    19,437    20,393    22,343    
FY19 22,879    21,744    19,994    21,925    18,206    17,472    18,176    16,973    20,010    19,392    21,042    23,855    
FY20 23,259    22,569    21,043    22,650    18,170    15,676    19,758    18,182    9,744      -         -         -         
FY21 -         -         -         -         -         -         -         -         -         -         1,947      5,640      
FY22 8,013      9,234      10,276    10,064    9,010      7,557      9,035      8,492      11,020    12,655    13,215    15,761    
FY23 15,107    15,952    15,099    15,422    12,647    11,445    13,534    13,409    15,979    15,380    17,219    

Difference Between FY19 and FY23
7,772      5,792      4,895      6,503      5,559      6,027      4,642      3,564      4,031      4,012      3,823      

% Change 34% 27% 24% 30% 31% 34% 26% 21% 20% 21% 18%

ITEM 9
Library Board of Trustees

June 8, 2023



2022 Percentage Change of in-person Library Visits from 2019 pre-COVID19 Baseline Levels

ton County

George's County

Stark Library

Skokie Public Library

Prince W
illia

m County

City of A
lexandria

San Diego County Library

Milw
aukee Public Library

Fairfa
x County

Hennepin County

Montgomery County

San Francisco Public

Toronto Public Library

Anne Arundel C
ounty

Ferguson Library

Pratt L
ibrary

Centra
l Arkansas

Pasadena Public Library

Loudon County

Edmonton Public Library

Allen County

Cincinnati P
ublic Library

Madison Public Library

Bklyn Public

Dayton Metro
 Library

The Public Library AL (N
M)

St. L
ouis County Library

San Mateo County

Metro
polita

n Library System (O
K)

Calgary Public

Santa Clara County

Seattle
 Public Library 

DC Public Library

Jefferson County

Anythink

Columbus Metro
polita

n Library

Pioneer Library System

Johnson County Public Library

Salt L
ake County

-80

-75

-70

-65

-60

-55

-50

-45

-40

-35

-30

-25

-20

-15

-10

-5

0

Urban Libraries Council Poll of Directors
ITEM 9

Library Board of Trustees
June 8, 2023


	2023-06-08_LBT Agenda
	2023-03-09_LBT Minutes_DRAFT
	2023-04-13_Special LBT Minutes_Draft
	2023-04-13_Regular LBT Minutes_Draft
	Item7_WorkPlan
	Item8_Budget+CIP_pagenumbered
	Item8_BudgetPageNumbered
	Item8_CIP

	Item9_GateCountFY18-23
	Sheet1

	Item9_In-person Library Visits



